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COMPLIANCE REPORT SUMMARY

The compliance audit testing performed during this audit was conducted in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and in accordance with the Itlinois State Auditing Act.

AUDITORS’ REPORTS

The auditors’ reports on compliance and on internal controls do not contain scope limitations, disclaimers, or other
significant non-standard language.

SUMMARY OF AUDIT FINDINGS

Number of This Audit Prior Audit
Audit findings 2 4
Repeated audit findings 1 3
Prior recommendations implemented
or not repeated 3 3

Details of audit findings are presented in a separately tabbed report section.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Item No. Page Description

FINDINGS (GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS)

07-1 12-13 Controls over financial statement preparation
07-2 14-15 [nactive accounts with excess cash balances

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST (FEDERAL COMPLIANCE)
07-2 16 Inactive accounts with excess cash balances

PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED (GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS)

06-2 19 Inaccurate expenditure reports filed
06-3 19 Inadequate review of journal entries
06-4 19 Controls over compliance with laws and regulation

PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED (FEDERAL COMPLIANCE)

06-2 19 Inaccurate expenditure reports filed
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EXIT CONFERENCE

The findings and recommendations appearing in this report were discussed with Agency personnel at an exit
conference on January 17, 2008. The following people attended this meeting:

Name Title
Robert A. Daiber Regional Superintendent
Cullen L. Cullen Assistant Superintendent
Dale B. Holtmann Special Assistant Auditor, J. W. Boyle & Co., Ltd.

Responses to the recommendations were provided by Robert A. Daiber in a letter dated February 12, 2008,



Financial Presentation
Examined

Auditors’ Reports

Financial Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORT

A financial statement audit consists of an audit of an
agency’s financial statements, including an
examination of the underlying books and records,

to determine whether those financial statements

are fairly presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The financial statement report is comprised of the
following:

A Summary section providing a brief overview of
the financial statement audit.

* An Auditors’ Reports section containing statements
by the auditors on the scope and results of their
audit, as required by applicable professional
standards.

* A Financial Statement section generally
consisting of:

* Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A)
as required supplementary information;

« Basic financial statements (entity-wide
financial statements, fund financial statements,
and notes to the financial statements);

* Required supplementary information other than
MD&A.

Additional financial statements may be presented for
agencies with reporting requirements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORT SUMMARY

The audit of the accompanying basic financial statements of the Regional Office of Education #41 was performed by
J.W. Boyle & Co., Ltd.

Based on their audit, the auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on the Regional Office of Education #41°s basic
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable William G. Holland
Auditor General
State of lllinois

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Regional Office of Education #41, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the
Regional Office of Education #41's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Regional Office of Education #41’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant cstimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement prescntation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opintons.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregatc
remaining fund information of the Regional Office of Education #41, as of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Governmment Awditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 8. 2008 on our
consideration of the Regional Office of Education #41°s internal control over financial reporting and on our test of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

COPFER BEND CENTRE
2810 FRANK SCOTT PARKWAY WEST, SUTTE 812
BELLEVILLE, TLS{NOIS 82223-5092



The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 20 through 26 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinicns on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Regional Office of Education #41°s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison
schedules, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

}’WW ., AeZ

J. W, Boyle & Co,, Ltd.

May 8, 2008
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable William G. Holland
Auditor General
State of Hhineis

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Regional
Office of Education #41, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the Regional Office
of Education #41°s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon: dated May 8, 2008, We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Regional Office of Fducation #4{’s (ROE #41) internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
ROE #41's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the ROE #41°s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the timited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control over financial reporting
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees. in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s
ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. We
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be significant
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, 07-1 and 07-2.

COPPER BEND CENTRE
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the
entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies, and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also
considered material weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies described above, we consider item 07-1 to
be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the ROE #41°s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance or other matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 07-2.

ROE #41°s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs. We did not audit ROE #41°s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General Assembly, the
Legislative Audit Commissien, the Governor, agency management, others within the organization, Illinois State

Board of Education, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified partics.

%WW ¢l Az

J. W. Boyle & Co., Ltd.

May 8, 2008
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable William G, Holland
Auditor General
State of lllinois

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Regional Office of Education #41 with the types of compliance requirements
described in the US. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that arc
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007. The Regional Office of Education
#41’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Regional Office of Education #41’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Regional Office of Education #41's compliance based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable 1o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining. on a test
basis, evidence about the Regional Office of Education #41°s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Regional Office of
Education #41°s compliance with thosc requirements.

In our opinion, the Regional Office of Education #41 complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007. However, the
results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those requirements, which is required
to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as item 07-2.

COPPER BEND CENTRE
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Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the Regional Office of Education #41 is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs, In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Regional Office of Education #41’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Regional Office of Education #41°s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. However, as discussed below, we identified a certain
deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal controi over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, m the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to
administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by
the entity’s internal control. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 07-2 to be a significant deficiency.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federa! program will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. We did not consider any of the deficiencies described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be material weaknesses,

Regional Office of Education #41’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit Regional Office of Education #41°s response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General Assembly, the
Legislative Audit Commission, the Governor, agency management, others within the organization, lllinois State

Board of Education, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Y gl S G, i
J. W. Boyle & Co., Ltd.

May 8, 2008
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
»  Material weakness(es) identified?
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that
are not considered to be material

weakness{es)?

» Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
s Material weakness(es) identified?
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified that
are not considered to be material

weakness(es)?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section .510(a)?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

84.366
84.357

Doliar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as a low-risk anditee?

Unqualified

X Yes No

X Yes None reported

Yes X  No

Yes X No

X Yes No
Unqualified

X Yes No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Mathematics and Science Partnership
Title I — Reading First Part B SEA Funds
3 300,000

Yes X  No
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REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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Section II--Financial Statement Findings FINDING NO. 07-1
REPEATED FROM 06-1, 05-2, 04-2,
03-3

Controls Over Financial Statement Preparation

b

fd

Criteria/specific requirement:

The Regional Office of Education #41 s required to maintain a system of controls over the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Regional Office internal controls
over GAAP financial reporting should include adequately trained personnel with the knowledge and expertise to
prepare and/or thoroughly review GAAP based financial statements to ensure that they are free of material
misstatements and include all disclosures as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Condition:

The Regional Office of Education #41 does not have sufficient internal controls over the financial reporting process.
The Regional Office maintains their accounting recerds on the cash basis of accounting. While the Regional Office
maintains controls over the processing of moest accounting transactions, there are not sufficient controls over the
preparation of the GAAP based financial statements for management or employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions to prevent or detect financial statement misstatements and disclosure omissions in a timely
manner. For example, auditors, in their review of the Regicenal Office's accounting records, noted the following:

- The Regional Office did not have adequate controls over the maintenance of complete records of accounts
receivable, accounts payable, or deferred revenues.

- The Regional Office did not maintain adequate controls over the financial reporting process and numerous
adjusiments were required to present the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Effect:

Management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions may not prevent or detect
financial statement misstatments and disclosure omissicens in a timely manner.

Cause:

The Regional Office of Education #41 has failed to maintain subsidiary records of accounts receivable, accounts
payable, and deferred revenue. There also appears to be a lack of understanding of proper accounting standards and
reporting requirements to prepare the financial statements.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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5. Recommendation:
As part of its internal control over the preparation of its financial statements, including disclosures, the Regional
Office of Education #41 should implement a comprehensive preparation and/or review procedure to ensure that the
financial statements, including disclosures, are complete and accurate. Such review procedures should be perfermed
by a properly trained individual(s) possessing a thorough understanding of applicable generally accepted accounting
principles, GASB pronouncements, and knowledge of the Regional Office of Education's activities and operations.

6. Management's response:
The Regional Office of Education #41 will implement a comprehensive preparation and review procedure to ensure the
financia} statements, including disclosures, are complete and accurate. This will be accomplished during Fiscal Year
2008 by entering into a contract with a knowledgeable public accounting firm that has the appropriate expertise and
understanding of the policies and procedures of the Regional Office of Education.
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Section I1--Financial Statement Findings FINDING NO. 07-2

REPEATED FROM N/A

Federal Program Name and Year: (a) Mathematics & Science Parinership, (b)Title I Reading First

(¢} Title IV Community Service Grant

Project No.: (a) 07-4936-01, (b) 07-4337-00, 07-4337-04, (c) 04-4420-00
CFDA No.: (a) 84.366, (b) 84.357, (c) 84.184
Passed Through: (a) Illinois State Board of Education, (b) lllino:s State Board of Education

(¢) Illinois State Board of Education

Federal Agency: (a) U.S. Department of Education, (b) U.S. Department of Education

(¢) U.S. Department of Education

Inactive accounts with excess cash balances

Criterig/specific requirement;

Good accounting practices require inactive accoustts with outstanding or deficit cash balances to be closed
appropriately. The Illinois Grant Funds Recovery Act (30 IL.CS 705/5) requires that all grant funds that have
not been expended or obligated by the end of the grant period be returned to the granting agency within 45 days
after the end of the period. The Act (30 ILCS 705/10) also states that ail interest earned on grant funds held by
a grantee shall become part of the grant principal when earned and be treated accordingly for all purposes
unless the grant agreement provides otherwise. In addition, the Uniform Administrative Requirements for
Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments (34 Code of Federal Regulations Part
80.21) requires that interest earned on federal fund balances in excess of $100 be remitted back to the federal
granting agency.

Condition:

The Madison County Regional Office of Education #41 has inactive accounts with outstanding cash balances.
As of June 30, 2007, there were three accounts on the general ledger with cash balances that have not had any
activity since 2005. In addition. there are three funds that have unspent interest revenue from grant funds that
is required to be returned to the grantor,

Inactive cash account balance

Title IV Community Service Grant $ 4,718

Scientific Literacy i,146

State Substance Abuse & Violence Prevention 7,521
S 13385

Excess interest revenue

Mathematics & Science Partnership ¥ 509
Title I Reading First Technical Assistance 178
Title I Reading First Part B SEA 111

$ 798
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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Questipned Costs
The unspent interest revenue of $798 represents questioned costs that need to be returned to the lilinois State
Board of Education.

Context

The Regional Office of Education has 23 grants that they administer and account for through separate funds.
Of these, three funds have maintained a cash balance with no activity for two years and three funds have excess
cash balances from interest eamings that are required to be returned to the grantor.

Effect:

Noncompliance with the Illinois Grant Funds Recovery Act and the Uniform Administrative Requirements for
Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments (34 Code of Federal Regulations Part
80.21).

Cause:
The Regional Office of Education #41 did not monitor the number of accounts, the interest earnings, or cash
balances that have remained inactive.

Recommendation:

The Regional Office of Education #41 should investigate the interest earnings and cash balances remaining in
accounts with no activity, or after a grant period has ended, to determine the appropriate action needed to close
out these accounts. In addition, the Regional Office of Education #41 should obtain adequate documentation
from granting agencies regarding the disposition of cutstanding grant money and return the outstanding grant
money if so required.

Management's response:

The Regional Office of Education #41 will investigate interest earned and cash balance remaining in accounts
without activities annually to determine appropriate action to close out accounts. The funds' excess funds
identified in the 2007 audit will be returned to the funding agency immediately.

15
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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Section III: Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

INSTANCES OF NONCOMPLIANCE:

1. Finding No. 07-2 Some programs did not disburse excess grant funds and interest income
(finding detail on pages 14-15)

16



STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2007

Corrective Action Plan

Finding No.: 07-1

Condition:

The Regional Office of Education #41 does not have sufficient internal controls over the financial reporting process.
The Regional Office maintains their accounting records on the cash basis of accounting. While the Regional Office
maintains controls over the processing of most accounting transactions, there are not sufficient controls over the
preparation of the GAAP based financial statements sufficient for management or employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions to prevent or detect financial statement misstatements and disclosure omissions in
a timely manner, For example, auditors, in their review of the Regional Office’s accounting records noted the
following:

- The Regional Office did not have adequate controls over the maintenance of complete records of accounts
receivable, accounts payable, or deferred revenues.

- The Regional Office did not maintain adequate controls over the financial reporting process and numerous
adjustments were required to present the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles.

Plan:

The Regional Office of Education #41 will implement a2 comprehensive preparation and review procedure to ensure
the financial statements, including disclosures, are complete and accurate. This will be accomplished during Fiscal
Year 2008 by entering into a contract with a knowledgeable public accounting firm that has the appropriate expertise
and understanding of the policies and procedures of the Regional Office of Education.

Anticipated Date of Completion:
As soon as practical.

Name of Contact Person:
Robert A, Daiber, Regional Superintendent
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2007

Corrective Action Plan

Finding No.: 07-2

Condition:

The Madison County Regional Office of Education #41 has inactive accounts with outstanding cash balances. As of
June 30, 2007, there were three accounts on the general ledger with cash balances that have not had any activity since
2005. In addition, there are three funds that have unspent interest revenue from grant funds that is required to be
returned to the grantor.

Inactive cash account balance

Title IV Community Service Grant $ 4,718
Scientific Literacy 1,146
State Substance Abuse & Violence Prevention 7,521
$ 13,385
Excess interest revenue
Mathematics & Science Partnership § 509
Title I Reading First Technical Assistance 178
Title [ Reading First Part B SEA 111
3 798
Plan:

The Regional Office of Education #41 will investigate interest earned and cash balance remaining in accounts without
activities annually to determine appropriate action to close out accounts. The funds’ excess funds identified in the
2007 audit will be returned to the funding agency immediately.

Anticipated Date of Completion:
As soon as practical.

Name of Contact Person:
Robert A. Daiber, Regional Superintendent
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Finding
Number

STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

June 30, 2007

Condition

Current Status

06-1

06-2

06-3

06-4

Unrecorded payabies and receivables material

to the financial statements

Inaccurate expenditure reports filed

Inadequate review of journal entries

Controls over compliance with laws and

regulation

Repeat Finding

Corrected, no expenditure reports need to be
amended in the current year

Corrected, a process was implemented in
which all general journal entries are approved
before being entered

Corrected, these mandates have been repealed



REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Madison County Regional Office of Education #41 (ROE #41), we offer readers of our financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the ROE #41 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007. We encourage readers o consider the information presented here in conjunction with ROE #41's
financial statements, which follow this section.

2007 Financial Highlights

+ The assets of the Regional Office of Education #41 exceeded its liabilities by approximately $2,030,000 (total net
assets). The total net assels increased by approximately $20,000 or 1%.

+ Operating grant monies received by the ROE #41 decreased by approximately $185,000 in 2007. This decrease is
mainly due to decreases in grants received for the Lincoln Charter School, Technology for Schools Network, and

Technology Enhancing Education Competitive Grant.

+ Charges for services, Governmental Activities revenues increased by approximately $184,000 over FY'07;
whereas Business-type activities revenues decreased by approximately $97,000.

+ Total expenses for ROE #41 decreased by approximately $60,000 due to the Technology Enhancing Education
Competitive Grant being finalized in 2006.

Overview of the Financial Statement
The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as follows:

+ Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical
overview of the Agency’s financial activities.

« The Government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities.
These financial statements provide information about the activities of ROE #41 as a whole and present an overall
view of the Agency's finances in a manner similar to private sector businesses.

« The fund financial statements illustrate how governmental services were financed in the short term, as well as
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report ROE #41’s operations in more detail than the

government-wide statements by providing information about the most significant funds.

+ Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the basic financial statements.

+ Supplementary information further explains and supports the financial statements.

» Other information includes combining financial statements and budgetary information for certain general fund
accounts, Education fund accounts, Educational Therapy Center, and other non-major accounts.

See independent auditors’ report.
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REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of ROLE #417s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector businesses.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of ROE #41°s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of ROE #41 is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how ROE #417s net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardiess of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for certain
itemns that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

In the government-wide financial statements, ROE #41°s activities are divided into two categories:

» Governmental activities; Most of ROE #41’s basic services are included here, such as regular and special
education instruction, instructional staff support services and administration. Federal, state and local grants and
contributions finance many of these activities.

* Business-type activities: ROE #41 charges fees to help cover the costs of certain services it provides, such as
workshops, conferences and teacher certification.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 27-28 of this report.

Fund financial statements. The fund financial statements provide detailed information about ROE #41's funds,
focusing on its most significant or “major” funds, not ROE #41 as a whole. Funds are accounting devices ROE #41]
uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by
state law. ROE #41 establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes, such as
educational instruction in specific areas or in order to show that it is properly using certain revenues, such as federal
grants. All of the funds of ROE #41 can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmenial funds account for most of ROE #41°s basic services. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on the balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance programs.
Because the governmental fund information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-
wide statements, it is useful to compare the statements. By so doing, the readers may betier understand the long-
term impact of the government's near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

See independent auditors' report.



REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Governmental funds include all general and special revenue funds. The governmental funds required financial
statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 29 and 31 of this report.

Proprietary funds. ROE #41 maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide statements. ROE #41 uses enterprise funds
to account for educational services for which it charges a fee. Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, but with more detail and additional information, such as
cash flows. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Technology Hub,
Workshop, and Teacher's Institute funds.

The proprietary funds required financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets and a Statement of Cash Flows. The basic proprietary fund financial
statements can be found on pages 33-35 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are nor reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources
of those funds are not availabie to support ROE #41's own programs. The accounting for fiduciary funds is much
like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund statement can be found on page 36 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements
can be found on pages 37-54 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain supplementary information concerning ROE #41. Overall budgeting is not a legal requirement for ROE #41.
Accordingly, formal budgets are not adopted; and therefore, budgetary comparison statements are not included in
the required supplementary information. However, ROE #41 is the recipient of monies from the Illinois State Board
of Education (ISBE) for certain accounts within the general fund and for most accounts within the education fund on
which ISBE requires budgetary comparison te actual results. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided
for the ISBE accounts to demonstrate compliance and can be found on pages 58 and 63-68 of this report.

The combining statements, in connection with the General Fund, Education Funds, Educational Therapy Center, and
non-major special revenue funds can be found on pages 56-74 of this report.

See independent auditors' report.



REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. Madison County
Regional Office of Education's net assets at the end of the Fiscal Year 2007 totaled approximately $2.03 million,
This is compared to approximately $2.01 million at the end of Fiscal Year 2006. The analysis that follows provides
a summary of the ROE's net assets at June 30, 2007 for the governmental and business-type activities.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Current and other assets $ 1,667,732 % 1,748,398 $ 637517 §  63¢,147 0§ 2305249 5 2,398,545
Capital assets 227,550 248,731 1,231 1,751 228781 250,462
Total assets $ 1,895282 § 1,997,129 $ 638748 $ 651,878 § 2,534,030 $ 2.649.007
Current liabilities $ 395876 $ 430,100 % 3802 % 27,716 § 399778 % 457816
Noncurrent liabilities 103,717 180,697 - - 103,717 180,697
Total liabilities § 499593 § 610797 § 3902 % 27,716 § 503495 § 638513
Net assets:
Invesied in Capital Assets,
net of related debt $ 227,550 § 248,731 % 1,231 § 1,731 228,781 § 250462
Restricted - - 241,074 213,955 241,074 213,955
Unrestricted 1,168,139 1,137,601 392,541 408,476 1,560,680 1,546,077
Total net assets $ 1,395689 § 1,386,332 § 634846 § 624,162 § 2,030,535 § 2,010,494

Year 2007 total assets, comprised predominately of cash and receivables, for governmental activities and business-
type activities decreased approximately $115,000 and liabilities decreased approximately $135,000, both due in
large part to the timing of grant receipts and the spending of excess funds in the Educational Therapy Center Fund.

As indicated above, ROE #41 reported positive net assets for both the governmental and business-type activities.
The assets of ROE #41 exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year by approximately $2,030,000 (net assets).
The investment in net capital assets was approximately $229,000 at the end of Fiscal Year 2007. ROE #41 uses
these capital assets in providing services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending.

Net assets of ROE #41 increased by approximately $20,000 during Fiscal Year 2007. The net increase is a result of
an increase in revenues and a decrease in expenditures. Key elements of the change are as follows:

See independent auditors' report.
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REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41

MADISON COUNTY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions

General revenues:
Local source
State seurce
investment Eamnings

On-behalf payments
Total revenues

Primary government:
Instructional Services:
Salaries and benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital Outlay
Qther cobjects
Other payments to
governments
Depreciation
Administrative on-behalf
payments
State
Local

Total expenses

Transfers
Loss on disposal of
capital assets

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Changes in Net Assets

Govermental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$ 2028703 % 1,844,606 § 169,033 265,775 § 2,197,736 % 2,110,38)
1,922,295 2,107,066 - - 1,922,295 2,107,066
140,263 59,250 - - 140,263 59,250
68,444 1,855 - - 68,444 1,855
47,610 45,398 22,873 19,428 70,483 64,826
1,027,292 975,644 - - 1,027,292 975,644
5,234,607 5,033,819 191,906 285,203 5,426,513 5,319,022
3,013,891 2,547 381 105,292 137,027 3,119,183 3,084 408
872,248 677,485 35816 72,971 908,064 750,456
224,648 283,269 19,949 15,227 244,597 298,496
- 6,132 - 7,822 - 13,954
7,983 6,789 300 - 8,283 6,789
- 257,786 19,365 6,357 19,365 264,143
76,642 69,684 500 500 77,142 70,184
379,962 336,460 - - 379,962 336,460
647,330 639,184 - - 647,330 639,184
5,222,704 5,224,170 181,222 239,904 5,403,926 5,464,074
- 14,239 - (14,239) -
(2,546) - - - (2,546) -
9,357 (176,112) 10,684 31,060 20,041 (145,052)
1,386,332 1,562,444 624,162 593,102 2,310,494 2,155,546
$ 1,395689 § 1,386,332 § 634,346 624,162 § 2030,535 § 2,010,494

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Revenues for Governmental activities increased approximately $200,000 or 4% in Fiscal Year 2007. A significant
factor in this increase was the Lincoln Charter School program revenue increased nearly $176,000 as the tuition was
increased $4,500 per student to offset the rising cost in the school. Further, ROE #41 received additional funding
from the School Improvement grant, Mathematics and Science grant, and from Title [ Reading First grant to help
offset the decrease from other grants that were discontinued in 2007.

See independent auditors' report.
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REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

The expenditures in total only decreased approximately $1,000. The increase in personnel cost and purchased
services is a factor of the additional grant monies received as noted above. The decrease in the remaining
expenditures is attributable to the Technology Enhancing Education Competitive Grant which was finalized in 2006,

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Revenues for this activity are comprised of charges for services. Expenses are for the purchase of services and the
costs related to the workshops, conferences and academics conducted by the ROE. The decrease in the revenues of
approximately $93,000 is a result of a decrease in the number of teachers' certificate registrations. Expenditures
decreased by approximately $59,000 as the number of conferences and workshops decreased.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION'S FUNDS

As previously noted, Madison County Regional Oftice of Education #41 uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND HIGHLIGHTS

The ROE's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of approximately $1,272,000, this is a decrease of
approximately $46,000 from last year's ending fund balance of $1,318,000. The change in governmental funds is
attributable 1o the change in revenues and expenditures as discussed in Governmental Activities above and the
difference of reporting capital assets and accrued absences.

PROPRIETARY FUND HIGHLIGHTS

The business-type activities net assets increased approximately $10,000, from $624,000 at June 30, 2006 to
$634,000 at June 30, 2007, representing an increase of approximately 2 percent.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Presenting an overall budget is not a legal requirement of ROE #41. Formal budgets are not adopted for all funds;
therefore budgetary comparison statements are not included in the financial statements.

ROE #41 is a subrecipient for certain grant programs that are accounted for within the special revenue funds. These
programs have separate budgets and are required to be reported to the [llinois State Board of Education. Comparison
of budgeted and actual results for various programs are presented as supplementary information.

CAPITAL ASSETS

At June 30, 2007, the ROE had invested approximately $227,000, net of accumulated depreciation, in computers,
audio-visual equipment, and other office equipment. This is a net decrease of approximately $21,000 from last year.
This decrease represents depreciation of $77,000, equipment additions of $58,000, and a net loss on the disposal of
some computer equipment of approximately $2.000.

More detailed information about capital assets is available in Note 3 to the financial statements.

See independent auditors' report.
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REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the ROE was aware of several existing
circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in the future.

» The ROE has experienced an increase in the number of students being served by its programs in the past year. A
slight increase in enrollment is expected at the Lighthouse Education Assistance Program and the Educational
Therapy Center for the upcoming year based on requests from local school districts.

+ The ROE's special day treatment program has made cuts in direct instructional staff due to a decrease in referrals
from local school districts. Further cuts may be warranted at the end of FY'08.

= The ROE received a special appropriation in fiscal year 2007 totaling $250,000 for the School lmprovement
fund. 1t is expected that this will continue in FY'08.

« The Lincoln Charter School was deactivated at the close of fiscal year 2007. The [llinois State Board of
Education was notified and all liabilities have been paid,

CONTACTING THE REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designed to provide the ROE's citizens, taxpayers, customers, and constituents with a general
overview of the ROE's finances and 10 demonstrate the ROE's accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information contact the Office Manger's Office of the
Madison County Regional Office of Education, 157 N. Main Street, Suite 438, Edwardsville, IL 62025.

See independent auditors' report.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Due from other governments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue
Other current liabilities

Total current habilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Restricted for teacher professional development

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

June 30, 2007

Governmental

Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 1,308,201 $ 629,345 $ 1,937,546
137,581 - 137,581
221,950 8,172 230,122
1,667,732 637,517 2,305,249
227,550 1,231 228,781
227,550 1,231 228,781
$ 1,895.282 % 638,748 $ 2.534.030
$ 104,961 b 296G $ 105,260
185,306 1,604 186,910
13,986 1,999 15,985
91,623 - 91,623
395,876 3,902 399,778
103,717 - 103,717
$ 499,593 $ 3,902 $ 503,495
$ 227,550 h) 1,231 $ 228781
1,168,139 392,541 1,560,680
- 241,074 241,074
$ 1,395,689 ) 634.846 $ 2,030,535
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2007

Totat Fund balances - governmental funds $ 1,271,856

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 227,550

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (103,717)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 1,395,689

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Net change in fund balances $  (46,4420)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital Qutlay $ 58,007
Depreciation expense (76,642)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (2,546) {21,181

Certain expenses in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds
Compensated absences 76,980

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 9,357

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Due from other governments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

[LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non current liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, nct of related debt
Unrestricted
Restricted for teacher professional development

TOTAL NET ASSETS

June 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Technology
Hub
Enterprise Workshop Institute Total
$ 167,212 $ 227232 $ 234,901 $ 629345
- - 8,172 8,172
167,212 227,232 243 073 637,517
1,231 - - 1,231
1,231 - - 1,231
168,443 227,232 243,073 638,748
108 191 - 299
- 1,604 - 1,604
- - 1,999 1,999
108 1,795 1,999 3,902
108 1,795 1,999 3,902
1,231 - - 1,231
167,104 225,437 - 392,541
- - 241,074 241,074
§ 168335 $§ 225437 $ 241,074 $ 634846

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Operating revenue
Charges for services

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay
Other
Depreciation
Payments to Other Governments
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenue
Interest
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total operating transfers
Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of vear

Net Assets, End of year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Technology Hub
Enterprise Workshop Institute Total

g 5,659 $ 117,104 3 46,270 5 169,033
- 105,292 - 105,292

608 28,462 6,746 35,816

399 18,577 973 19,949

- - 300 300

560 - - 500

- - 19,365 19,365

1,507 152,331 27,384 181,222
4,152 (35,227 18,886 (12,189)

6,057 8,583 8,233 22,873
10,209 (26,644) 27,119 10,684
10,209 (26,644) 27,119 10,684
158,126 252,081 213,955 624,162

$ 168,335 $ 225437 § 241074 § 634846
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE QF EDUCATION #41
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Technology
Hub
Enterprise ~ Workshop Institute Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers S 5659 % 128293 S 47530 S 181,482
Payments to suppliers and providers of goods
and services {2,084) (67,937 (28,660} (98,681}
Payments to cmployees - (105,835) - (105,855)
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activitics 3,575 {45,499) 18,870 {23,054)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: - - - -
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: - - - -
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on invesuments 6,057 8,583 8,233 22,873
Net cash provided by investing activities 6,057 8,583 B.233 22,873
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 9,632 (36,916) 27,103 {181
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year 157,580 264,148 207,798 629,526
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year $ 167212 § 227232 S 234901 & 629345
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by {used for) operating activities:
Operating income {loss) 8 4,152 § (35227) § 1888 5 (12,189

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by {used for) operating activities:
Depreciation expense 500 - - 500
Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable - 11,189 1,260 12,449
{Decrease) in accounts payable (1,077) (20,898) - (21,975)
(Decrease) in due to other governments - - (1,276) (1.276)
(Decrease) in accrued payroll - (563) - (563)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 3575 8 (45499} § 18870 § (23054

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41

FIDUCIARY FUND
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
June 30, 2007
Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash (overdrafts) $ (6,168)
Accounts receivable 4,375
Total assets $ (1,793)
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments $ (1,793)
Total liabilities $ (1,793)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Regional Office of Education #41 is presented to assist in
understanding the Regional Office of Education’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are
representations of the Regional Office of Education’s management who is responsible for the integrity and objectivity
of the financial statements. The Illinois Administrative Code, Title 23 - Subtitie A, Chapter I, Section 110.115a,
requires each Regional Office of Education to prepare annual financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These principles have been consistently applied in the
preparation of the financial statements.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Regional Office of Education #41 was formed under the provisions of the State of Illinois, Illinois State Board of
Education.

The Regional Superintendent is responsible for supervision and control of school districts within Regional Office of
Education #41. This includes all aspects of supervision, reports and financial accounting of districts, which are
considered by State law to be in the Regional Office of Education. In addition, the Regional Superintendent is
charged with responsibility for township fund lands; registration of the names of applicants for scholarships to State
controlled universities; examinations and related duties; visitation of public schools; direction of teachers and school
officers; to serve as the official advisor and assistant of school officers and teachers; to conduct teachers institutes as
well as to aid and encourage the formation of other teachers meetings and assist in their management; evaluate the
schools in the Regional Office of Education; examine school treasurer’s books, accounts, and vouchers; examine
evidence of indebtedness; file and keep the retums of elections required to be returned to the Regional
Superintendent’s office; and file and keep the reports and statements returned by school treasurers and trustees.

The Regional Superintendent is also charged with the responsibilities of conducting a special census, when required;
providing notice of money distributed to treasurers, board presidents, clerks, and secretaries of the school districts on
or before each September 30; maintenance of a map and numbering of the Regional Office of Education’s districts;
providing township treasurers with a list of district treasurers; to inspect and approve building plans which comply
with State taw; to perform and report on annual building inspections; investigate bus drivers for valid bus driver
permits and take related action as may be required; to maintain a list of unfilled teaching positions and to carry out
other related duties required or permitted by law.

The Regional Superintendent is responsible for inspection and approval or rejection of school treasurer’s bonds. The

Regional Superintendent is also required to provide the State Board of Education with an affidavit showing that the
treasurers of school districts under his control are properly bonded.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A. Financial Reporting Entity {Continued)

The Regional Superintendent is also responsible for apportionment and payment of funds received from the State for
the districts in the Regional Office of Education, or see that no payments are made unless the treasurer has filed or
renewed appropriate bonds and that the district has certified publication of the annual financial report.

The Regional Superintendent is required to provide opinions and advice related to controversies under school law.
For the period ended June 30, 2007, the Regional Office of Education applied for, received, and administered
numerous State and federal programs and grants in assistance and support of the educational activities of the school

districts in Regional Office of Education #41. Such activities are reported as a single major fund (Education Fund).

B. Scope of the Reporting Entity

The Regional Office of Education reporting entity includes all related organizations for which they exercise oversight
responsibility.

The Regional Office of Education has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities, which
benefit the citizens of the region, including districts or joint agreements, which serve pupils from numerous regions,
should be included in its financial reporting entity. The criteria include, but are not limited to, whether the Regional
Office of Education exercises oversight responsibility (which includes financial interdependency, selection of
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for
fiscal matters), scope of public service, and special financing relationships.

The districts and joint agreements have been determined not to be a part of the reporting entity after applying the
manifesting of oversight, scope of public service, and special financing relationships criteria and are therefore
excluded from the accompanying financial statements because the Regional Office of Education does not control the
assets, operations, or management of the districts or joint agreements. In addition, the Regional Office of Education is
not aware of any entity, which would exercise such oversight as to result in the Regional Office being considered a
component unit of the entity.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Regional Office of Education #41. For the most part, the effect
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are normally supported
by grant revenues and intergovemnmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which would
generally rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for services.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the nonfiduciary assets and liabilities, with the differences reported as net
assets. Net assets are reported in three categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by outstanding balances of any debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net assets use either externally imposed or imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories.
Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources imposed by management.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1} charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds
and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The accounts of the Regional Office of Education #41 are organized on the basis of funds and account group, each of
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for within a separate set
of self-balancing accounts. The Regional Office of Education #41 maintains individual funds required by the State of
Tllinois and as established by purpose or agreements. The various funds are summarized by type in the financial
statements. These funds and accounts are grouped by fund type. The Regional Office of Education’s resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and by the
means in which spending activities are controlled.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

C. Government-wide and fund financial statements {continued)

The various funds used by the Regional Office of Education #41 are categorized as follows for presentation in the
financial statements:

Governmental Fund Types
General Funds

The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those requized to be accounted for in
other funds. The General Fund includes the following funds:

Technology Hub - This fund receives a grant for the purpese of providing a coordinated, state-wide
support infrastructure which assists the school districts in planning for, implementing, assessing
results and educating school staff in the use of technology and telecommunications in curricular,
instructional and administrative functions.

School Improvement - Accounts for the ROE/ISC Operations grant and transactions associated with
the operations of the Regional Office of Education.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted by
law or administrative action to expenditures for specified purposes. The Special Revenue Funds include the
following funds:

Education Fund - This fund is used to account for State and federal grant monies received for, and
payment of, administering numerous grant awards. The Education Fund includes the following funds:

Truants Alternative and Optional Education Project - This fund is used to account for the grant
monies received for, and payment of, providing truancy prevention programming and monitoring
truants.

Vocational Adjustment Counselor - This fuad is used to account for grant monies received for, and
payment of, program costs to provide rehabilitation counseling for individuals in secondary work
experience.

Title IV Community Service Grant — This fund is used to account for the grant monies received for,
and payment of, community service activities for the Regional Safe School students.

Mathematics & Science Partnership — This fund is used to account for administration of monies for
the Mathematics & Science Partnership program. The purpose of the grant is to target math and
science teachers with content for professional development.
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NOTE 1:

STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued)

Education Fund (continued)

Scientific Literacy - This fund is used to account for the grant monies received for, and payment of,
school improvement plans for regional schools in the areas of math and science and to coordinate
teacher development in math and science.

State Substance Abuse & Violence Prevention - This fund is used to account for the grant menies
received for, and payment of, plans to stop substance abuse and violence in the school districts.

Regional Safe Schools - This fund is used to account for the grant monies received for, and the
payment of, local, regional and statewide training opportunities and professional development for
faculty and staff.

General State Aid - This fund is used to account for the grant monies received for, and the payment
of, additional Regional Safe Schools monies.

Migrant Education — This fund is used to account for grant monies received for, and payment of,
outreach services for migrant workers in the Madison County area.

State Standards & Assessment — The purpose of this grant is to support the development of school

and district improvement planning with particular emphasis on data analysis. In addition, focus on
school community relations is addressed.

Title_I School Improvement — The purpose of this grant is to conduct targeted assistance with
planning, professional development, and data analysis solely with struggling schools eligible to
receive service.

Title I — Reading First Technical Assistance — This fund is used to account for grant monies recetved
for, and payment of, technical assistance activities for an Early Reading Specialist.

Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Fund - This fund is used to account for grant monies received for,
and payment of, professional development in the area of reading for teachers in the Madison and
Venice school districts.

Title I - Reading First Part B Training Academy - This fund is used to account for the grant monies
received for, and payment of, professional development in the area of reading for K-3 teachers in
Madison County.

Reading Improvement Statewide — This fund is used to account for the grant monies received for, and
payment cf, the design and implementation of professional development and resource materials for
administrators and teachers in grades K-6.

Standards Aligned Classroom - This fund is used to account for administration of monies for
Learning Teams involved with the Standards Aligned Classroom Project.
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STATE OF ILLINOQIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Government-wide and fund financia] statements {(continued)

Lighthouse Educational Assistance Program - This fund is used to account for administration of an
educational facility within a drug rehabilitation center.

Linceln Charter School - This fund is used to account for administration of monies associated with the start
up and operations of the Lincoln School District which opened in 2005 and closed on June 30, 2007.

Educational Therapy Center - This fund is used to account for funds related to the administration of a public
day school which provides special education and therapeutic services for behaviorally disordered and
emotionally disturbed students. The Educational Therapy Center Fund includes the following funds:

Unemployment Reserve - This fund is used to accumulate resources to be used to pay for unemployment
and related expenses should the Educational Therapy Center cease to exist.

Lunch Account Program - This fund is used to account for the State monies received for, and payment of,
providing free and reduced priced meals.

Day Program - This fund is used to account for grant monies and local monies received for providing
special education and therapeutic services to behaviorally disordered and emotionally disturbed students.

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

GED - This fund was established to administer the high school level test of General Educational
Development.

Bus Driver Training - This fund is used to account for the issuance of school bus driver permits and to
sponsor instructional training courses for school bus drivers.

Supervisory Expense - The Regional Superintendent receives an annual award of $1,000 from the State
Board of Education to pay for travel and meeting expenses.

Administrative - This fund is used to account for reimbursement from other funds for office supplies used
by those funds.

Youth and_Camp Success - This fund is used to account for monies to provide a positive, anti-drug
environment at Lake Williamson for students in grades 6-12. The program is administered in conjunction
with the Madison County Health Department.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued)

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for resources from fees charged directly to those entities or individuals
that use its services. The Enterprise Fund includes the following funds:

Technology Hub Enterprise - This fund is used to account for the fees collected and related costs
associated with the setup of e-mail addresses the County performs for the schools.

Workshop - This fund is used to account for workshops financed through user fees.

Institute - The Institute Fund is authorized by Section 3-12 of the School Code (105 ILCS 5/3-12). All
examination, registration and renewal fees are paid into the Institute Fund, which is used 1o defray
administrative expenses incidental to teacher’s institutes, workshops, or meetings of a professional nature,
All funds generated remain restricted until expended only on the aforementioned activities.

Fiduciary Fund Type

Agency Funds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the Madison County Regional Office of Education #4]
as an agent for other governments. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. The Agency Funds include the following funds:

Teacher Retirement Svstem and Teacher Health Insurance Supplement — This fund s used to collect the
retirement contributions and withholdings from all other funds to be paid to the State retirement fund.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D). Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The general accounting records for the various funds of the Regional Office of Education #41 are maintained
substantially on a cash basis. Revenues are recorded when cash is received and expenditures are recorded when cash
payments are made. However, the accounting principles used to present the financial statements are in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles for governmental entities.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the econoniic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Grant revenues associated with the current fiscal
period, but not received before fiscal year end are reported as deferred revenue.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures
related to claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for fees and services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund, Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and
gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment carnings, resuit from
nonexchange transactions or ancillary services.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989 generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have
the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. Regional Office of Education #41 has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the Regional Office of Education #41 conform to

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental
units.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. Budgetary Data

Overall budgeting is not a legal requirement for the Regional Office of Education. Formal budgets are not adopted for
all funds; therefore budgetary comparison schedules are not included in the financial statements.

The Regional Office of Education is the recipient of monies from the Illinois State Board of Education for certain
accounts within the general fund and for most accounts in the education fund on which ISBE requires budgetary
comparison to actual results. Comparisons of budgeted and actual results for various programs are reported as
supplementary information: Technology Hub, Schoo! Improvement, Truants Alternative and Optional Education
Project, Vocational Adjustment Counselor, Mathematics & Science Partnership, Regional Safe Schools, State
Standards and Assessment, Title I Schoot Improvement, Title I Reading First Technical Assistance, Title 1 Reading
First Part B SEA Funds, Title I Reading First Part B Training Academy, and Standards Aligned Classroom.

F. Cash Flows

The Regional Office of Education considers all cash and all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets)
with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, equipment, are recorded in the applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the
government-wide financial statements, Expenditures for the acquisition are capitalized. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
The costs of capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund at the time of purchase and any proceeds
from sales are recorded as receipts at the time of disposal in the governmental funds’ statements for governmental
activities.

All fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair value in the year received. Capital assets are defined by the Regional
Office of Education #41 as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year.

The provision for depreciation on fixed assets is provided on a straight-line basis. Estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Equipment 5-10 years
Office equipment 3-7 years
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H. Fund Equity

The unreserved fund balances for governmental funds represent the amount available for budgeting future operations.
Special revenue funds are reserved to finance specific functions or activities of each fund.

I. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as they relate to governmental entities requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

J. Compensated Absences

All Regional Office employees must use their annual vacation before November 30, and an accrual for this liability as
of June 30 has been provided in the government-wide financial statements.

Accumulated sick pay benefits are available to all full-time employees to use in future years, up to 480 hours. They
are eligible to be compensated for these unused sick days after attaining age 55 and employed for eight years. They
will be compensated upon retirement only, if terminated, their unused sick days are forfeited. Per GASB Statement
16, we used the Vesting Method to calculate the necessary accrual. Under this method, the liability is measured based
on those that are eligible to receive retirement payments and those who are expected to become eligible in future
years.

As required by Government Accounting Standards Board Interpretation 6, the accrual for unused vacation and sick
time is reflected when incurred in the government-wide financial statements, and is reflected in the governmental

funds only when the liability is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

K. New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2007, the Regional Office of Education adopted GASB Statement No. 43,
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. There was no significant impact
on the Regional Office of Education’s financial statements as a result of adopting this statement.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2007 are classified in the financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Assets:

Cash and investments $1,937,546
Fiduciary funds (agency funds):
Cash and investments (6,168)
Total cash and investments $ 1,931,378

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2007 consist of the following:

Petty cash h 1,830
Deposits with financial institution 1,456,223
Investments 473,325

$ 1,531,378
Cash Deposits

At June 30, 2007, the Regional Office of Education had one depository account with the Bank of Edwardsville. The
Regional Office of Education does not have a deposit policy. The account is a Money Market account with an annual
interest rate of 3.87 at June 30, 2007.

Insured $ 100,000
Collateralized
Collateral held by pledging bank's trust

department in the Regional Office of Education’s name 1,356,223
Total deposits $ 1,456,223
Investments

At June 30, 2007, Regional Office of Education #41 had the following investments:

Investment Maturities Fair Value
Associated Bank - Certificate of Deposit 711172007 $102,234
Associated Bank - Certificate of Deposit 9/20/2007 158,259
Premier Bank of Jacksonville - Certificate of Deposit 12/30/2007 106,416
Premier Bank of Jacksonville - Certificate of Deposit 12/30/2007 106,416
$473,325
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REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
The Regional Office of Education does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure 1o fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

The Regional Office of Education is allowed to invest in securities as authorized by Sections 2 and 6 of the Public
Funds Investment Act (30 ILCS 235/2 and 6); and Section 8-7 of the School Code. The Regional Office of Education
has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices, As of June 30, 2007, the Regional Office of
Education was in compliance with these guidelines.

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the Regional Office of
Education will not be abie to recover its investments or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the

possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2007, $0 of the investment balance was exposed to custodial credit risk
as uninsured and uncollateralized.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Regional Office of Education places no limit on the amount invested in any one issuer. All of the Regional
Office of Education's investments are in Certificates of Deposit with Premier Bank of Jacksonville (45%}) and
Associated Bank {55%).

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

The Regional Office of Education #41°s management has elected to capitalize only assets individually costing $500 or
more for reporting purposes.
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NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Capital asset activity for fiscal year 2007 was as follows:

Govemmental activities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2006 Additions Deletions June 30, 2007
Assets being depreciated:
Equipment $ 671,859 5 58007 % (5101 % 724,765
Less Accumulated
Depreciation: $ 423,128 % 76,642 § (2,555 % 497.215
Governmental
activity capital
assets, net $ 248.731 N (18,635 § 2546y § 227550
Depreciation was charged to the Instructional Services activity.
Business-type activities - Enterprise I'und
Balance Balance
July 1, 2006 Additions Deletions June 30, 2007
Equipment $ 2500 % - Ny - $ 2,500
Less Accumulated
depreciation: 769 500 - 1,269
Business-type
activity capital
assets, net $ 1,731 % (500 §._ - $ 1,231

NOTE 4: COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The ROE records a liability associated with compensated absences. During the fiscal year, the amount in this account
decreased by $76,980. At June 30, 2007, the balance in this account was $103,717.

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Additions Deletions 2007
Compensated absences i l§0 ggz $ _ $ ?6.980 $ 103 ?1?
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 5;: ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS
Salaries of the Regional Superintendent and the Assistant Regional Superintendent are paid by the State of Iilinois,

and a significant portion of the operating expenditures of Madison County Regional Office of Education #41 are paid
by Madison County, Illinois, in accordance with the statutes. The breakdown of the State and County on-behalf

payments for the year ended June 30, 2007 is as follows:

Regional Superintendent Salary $ 75,066
Assistant Regional Superintendent Saiary 79,686
Regional Superintendent Benefits (Includes State paid insurance) 1,170
Assistant Regional Superintendent Benefits (Inctudes State paid 18,058
insurance)

Teacher Retirement System pension contributions 195,982
Salaries of Office worker’s paid by County 517,055
Rent for Office Space 38,880
County share of health insurance 60,996
County retirement contributions 30.399

Total 1,027,292

Salary and benefit data for the Regional Superintendent and the Assistant Regional Superintendent was calculated

based on data provided by the Illinois State Board of Education.

NOTE 6: INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Following is a summary of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2007:

Transferred Transferred
In Out
Education Fund i3 - $ 4,839
Special Revenue Funds
Lincoln Charter School 4,839
Other Non-major Funds 1,088 1,088
Total k) 5,927 $ 5927
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 7: DUE TO/FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The Regional Office of Education #41’s General Fund, Proprietary Fund, Agency Fund and various grant programs
have funds dve from and to various other governmental units which consist of the following:

Due From Other Governments:
General Fund

Hiinois State Board of Education $ i,865
Education Fund

[linois State Board of Education $ 132,587

St Clair County ROE #50 3.026

$ 135613

Educational Therapy Center Fund
Illinois State Board of Education b 103

Due To Other Governments:
General Fund
1llinois State Board of Education b 517

Education Fund
1llinois State Board of Education $ 13,469

Enterprise Funds
lllinois State Superintendent of Education $ 1,999

Agency Fund
State of Illinois - TRS & THIS 1,79

NOTE 8: PENSION AND RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS

The Regional Office of Education participates in the Teacher’s Retirement System of the State of Iilinois (TRS).
Members of TRS include all active non-annuitants who are employed by a TRS-covered employer to provide services
for which teacher certification is required. The Regional Office of Education’s covered payroil for the year ended
June 30, 2007 was $1,849,150.

TRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that was created by the Iliinots legisiature for
the benefit of Illinois public school teachers employed outside the city of Chicago. The [llinois Pension Code outlines
the benefit provisions of TRS, and amendments to the plan can be made only by legislative action with the Governor’s
approval. The State of lllinois maintains primary responsibility for the funding of the plan, but contributions from
participating employers and members are also required. The TRS Board of Trustees is responsible for the system’s
administration.

TRS members include al! active non-annuitants who are employed by a TRS-covered employer to provide services for
which teacher certification is required. The active member contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2007, was 9.4
percent of creditable earnings. These contributions, which may be paid on behalf of employees by the employer, are
submitted to TRS by the employer. In addition, virtually all employers and members pay a contribution to the
Teacher’s Health Insurance Security (THIS) Fund, a separate fund in the State Treasury that is not a part of this
retirement plan. The employer THIS Fund contribution was 0.60 percent during the year ended June 30, 2007, and
the member THIS Fund health insurance contribution was 0.80 percent.
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NOTE 8: PENSION AND RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The State of [llinois makes contributions directly to TRS on behalf of the Regional Office’s TRS-covered employees.

On-behalf contributions. The State of Illinois makes employer pension contributions on behalf of the Regional
Office. For the year ended June 30, 2007, State of Illinois contributions were based on 9.78 percent of creditable
earnings, and the Regional Office recognized revenues and expenditures of $195,982 in pension contributions that
the State of Illinois paid directly to TRS. For the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005, the State of
Illinois contribution rates as percentages of creditable earnings were 7.06 percent ($140,796) and 11.76 percent
($208,861), respectively. The state contributions to TRS for the years ended June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006
were based on dollar amounts specified by the statute and were not actuarially determined. The state
contributions for the year ended June 30, 2005 were based on an actuarial formula.

The Regional Office of Education makes other types of employer contributions directly to TRS.

2.2 formula contributions. Employers contribute 0.58 percent of creditable earnings for the 2.2 formula change.
This rate is specified by statute. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2007 were $10,725. Contributions for
the years ending June 30, 2006, and June 30, 2005, were $10,591 and $9,325, respectively.

Federal and trust fund contributions. When TRS members are paid from federal and trust funds administered
by the Regional Office, there is a statutory requirement for the Regional Office to pay an employer pension
contribution from those funds. Under a policy adopted by the TRS Board of Trustees that was first effective in
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, employer contributions for employees paid from federal and trust funds will
be the same as the state contribution rate to TRS. For the year ended June 30, 2007, the employer pension
contribution was 9.78 percent of salaries paid from federal and trust funds. For the year ended June 30, 2006, the
employer contribution was 7.06 percent of salaries paid from federal and trust funds. For the year ended June 30,
2005, the employer pension confribution was 10.5 percent of salaries paid from those funds. For the year ended
June 30, 2007, salaries totaling $109,131 were paid from federal and trust funds that required employer
contributions of $10,673. For the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005, required Regional Office
contributions were $10,582 and $31,185, respectively.

Early retirement option. The Regional Office is also required to make one-time employer contributions to TRS
for members retiring under the Early Retirement Option (ERQO). The payments vary depending on age and salary
of the member and under which ERO program the member retires. Under Public Act 94-0004, a “Pipeline ERO”
program is provided for members to retire under the same terms as the ERO program that expired on June 30,
2005, provided they meet certain conditions and retire on or before July I, 2007. If members do not meet these
conditions, they can retire under the “Modified ERO” program which requires higher member and employer
contributions to TRS. Also, under Modified ERO, Public Act 94-0004 eliminates the waiver of member and
employer ERO contributions that had been in effect for members with 34 years of service (unless the member
qualifies for the Pipeline ERO). Under the ERO program that expired on June 30, 2005 and the Pipeline ERQ, the
maximum employer contribution is 100 percent of the member’s highest salary used in the final average salary
calculation. Under the Modified ERQ, the maximum employer contribution is 117.5 percent. Both the 100
percent and 117.5 percent maximums apply when the member is age 55 at retirement. For the year ended June
30, 2007, the Regional Office paid $0 to TRS for employer contributions under the Pipeline ERO and Modified
ERO programs. For the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005, the Regional Office paid $0 and $34,789
in employer ERO contributions, respectively.
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NOTE 8: PENSION AND RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

e Salary increases over 6 percent and excess sick leave. Public Act 94-0004 added two new employer
contributions to TRS. If an employer grants salary increases over 6 percent and those salaries are used to
calculate a retiree’s final average salary, the employer makes a contribution to TRS. The contribution will cover
the difference in actuarial cost of the benefit based on actual salary increases and the benefit based on salary
increases up to 6 percent. For the year ended June 30, 2007, the Regional Office paid 30 to TRS for employer
contributions due on salary increases in excess of 6 percent. For the year ended June 30, 2006, the Regional
Office paid $0 in emplover contributions due on salary increases in excess of 6 percent. If an employer grants
sick leave days in excess of the normal annual alletment and those days are used as TRS service credit, the
employer makes a contribution to TRS. The contribution is based on the number of excess sick leave days used
as service credit, the highest salary used to calculate final average salary, and the TRS total normal cost rate
{17.60 percent of salary during the year ended June 30, 2007). For the year ended June 30, 2007, the Regional
Office paid $0 to TRS for sick leave days granted in the excess of the normal annual allotment. For the year
ended June 30, 2006, the Regional Office paid $0 in employer contributions granted for sick leave days.

Further information

TRS financial information, an explanation of TRS benefits, and descriptions of member, employer, and state funding
requirements can be found in the TRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2006.
The report for the year ended June 30, 2007 is expected to be available in late 2007. The reports may be obtained by
writing to the Teachers’ Retirement System of the State of Illinois, P.O. Box 19253, 2815 West Washington Street,
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9253. The most current report is also available on the TRS website at www.trs.illinois.gov.

Non-certified employees are paid by, and considered employees of, county government. As such, related retirement
obligations associated with these employees are the responsibility of county government.

NOTE 9: DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

At June 30, 2007, the Title [ School Improvement Fund had a deficit fund balance of ($2,130). It is expected to
correct itself in future years through ordinary operations.

NOTE 10: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of operation, the Regional Office receives grant funds from various federal and State agencies.
These grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to ensure
compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as a
result of these audits is not believed to be material.

Significant losses are covered by the commercial insurance for all major programs: property, liability, and workman’s

compensation. During the year ended June 30, 2007 there were no significant reductions in coverage. Also, there
have been no settlement amounts which have exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years.

NOTE 11: RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCES
Beginning fund balances for the Education Fund and the Other Non-Major Funds were restated to properly reflect the

Standards Aligned Classroom fund as an education fund. As a result of this restatement, the beginning fund balance
in the Education Fund increased $2,021 and the Other Non-Major Funds decreased by $2,021.
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NOTE 12: OPERATING LEASES

Lease 1: On August 1, 2003 the Regional Office of Education entered into a lease agreement with Alton Community
Unit School District No. 11 for rental of the building at 409 Main Street, Alton (Clara Barton School} for five years
beginning August 1, 2003 and terminating July 31, 2008. The lease is $20,000 annually, with semi-annual payments
due in August and February of each year of the lease. Lease expense for this building for fiscal year 2007 was
$20,000.

Lease 2: On April 1, 2003 the Regional Office of Education entered into a lease agreement with Collinsville
Community Unit School District No. 10 for rental of the building at Illinois Route 159 and Oran Street, Collinsville
(Lanham School) for one year beginning on August 1, 2003 and terminating July 31, 2004, with an option for yearly
renewals. The current lease is $15,000 annually, with semi-annual payments due in August and February. Lease
expense for this building for fiscal year 2007 was $15,000.

Lease 3: On September 1, 1997 the Regional Office of Education entered into a lease agreement with Madison
County Buildings and Lands Commitiee for rental of the facility at 200 Clay Street, Edwardsville (School
Improvement and Technology Hub service center) for one year beginning on September 1, 1997 and terminating on

August 31, 1998, with an option for yearly renewals. The current lease is $24,000 per year, payable semi-annually.
Lease expense for this facility for fiscal year 2007 was $24,000.

Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable leases having remaining terms in excess of 1 year as of June
30, 2007 for each of the next five years in the aggregate are:

Year Ended June 30,
2008 $59,000

NOTE 13: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Lincoln Charter School has closed as of June 30, 2007.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
MADISON COUNTY
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

The following schedules provide additional detail on balances and activities of Regional Office of Education #4]
government and its operations.

Major Funds

The general fund and the education funds are comprised of various fund accounts that provide additional control and
information about specific resources and expenditures of these funds. More detailed schedules of the general fund
and the education fund have been provided.

Nonmajor Funds

Nonmajor governmental funds consist of all special revenue funds which are not included in the education fund.

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for particular
purposes. Schedules have been provided for all nonmajor special revenue funds.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
GENERAL FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS

ASSETS
Cash (overdrafts)
Duc from other governments

Accounts receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued payroll
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Fund balance - unreserved

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditor's report.

June 30, 2007
Technology School
Hub Improvement Total
S (1,482) % 8,223 S 6,741
1,865 - 1,865
20,245 - 20,245
$ 20,628 5 8,223 $ 28.851
$ 13,483 $ 3,527 $ {7,010
517 - 517
3,809 2,054 5,863
- 1,341 1,341
17,809 6,922 24,731
2,819 1,301 4,120
$ 20,628 $ 8,223 b} 28,851
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41

GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Technology School
Hub Improvement Total
REVENUES
Local revenue $ 20,245 $ - $ 20,245
State revenue 310,183 371,820 682,003
On-behalf revenue - 1,027,292 1,027,292
Interest 2,585 402 2,987
Total Revenues 333,013 1,399,514 1,732,527
EXPENDITURES
Salaries 164,730 183,806 348,536
Benefits 30,958 32,655 63,613
Purchased services 188,141 79,362 267,503
Supplies and materials 5,013 43,740 48,753
Capital outlay 18,020 26,983 45,003
Other - 304 304
On-behalf payments - 1,027,292 1,027,292
Total Expenditures 406,862 1,394,142 1,801,004
Revenues over/{under) expenditures {73,849) 5,372 (68,477)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - -
Net change in fund balances {73,849) 5,372 (68,477)
Fund Balance, Beginning of year 76,668 {4,071) 72,597
Fund Balance, End of year $ 2,819 $ 1,301 3 4,120

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditor’s report.

57



el

‘woda s J0jphE Juapuadapul pur SJUSLURIEIS [RISURUL) SYI O) SMI0U D25

HKEE 10€ 1 g 618¢ $
65T (L0 299°G{
(LLY'8) TLE'S (6¥8°cL)

Lirs®) & (219'89) - § ts §  Tig's - § T6r8TL) §  (6p8'cs) - g
CLooel 1) r00° 1081 £00'789 (zzg'zzo'n) AR OTR'[LE £6£9'06) zo8°90p £R1°01¢
(Z6T'L20°1) 76Z°L70M - (267°LT0°L) 6T LZ0' - - - -

911 +0¢€ oy 91y $0¢ oty - - -
{950°1} £00'Sk LF6'CF L1T'8 £86°97 002°5¢ (€L7'6) 070°%1 LvL'8
{£1¥') £6L'8Y OFE' by {066°¢) OrL'ch 0568 (e £10° 065°p
{£g6°L8) £06°29T 055641 856 T9£°6L 0Te'os (116'88) 1#1°881 0£T 66
;2% £19'€9 £51°v9 (czs) $59'7¢ 0€1zE $901 8$6°0€ £20'2E
LSO 9£5'8p¢ €65 6FE ¥61 90881 000°F8 1 £98 Q€L P01 £65'691
pZE0s0'( LTS'TEL'] £00'789 P69 LZ0' PI666€ | 0Z8°1LE 08’72 £10°¢€E £81°01E
L86'T LR86T - v ot - $8¢'T $8S'T -
Z6T'LTO] Z6T'LI0'] - 6T LT 6T LTO'L - - - -

- £00'789 £00°789 - 078 1LE 0Z8°14€ - £81°01¢ £81°01¢
Pz O § spToz § - $ - $ - $ - $ N TA O TAN S SFT0Z § - )
(2AnEdaN) |enyay apny (AnEdaN]) En)RYy 1a8png {IANREIN)} [ENLYY wapnyg

JANse] JADNISO JANISO
eucﬂ_.—ﬂ} muﬁa_{_a? 00&&3«?
|e10] yudwsaoadur] [0oydg qnH ASojouydI

LOOT “0€ dunp papuq xeap 3 1o

SLNNOIDY ONNA TYHINTD

AT1NAAHIS NOSITHVAINOD AHVY.LEDANd
[t# NOLLVIDGYE A0 D440 TYNOIDAHE ALNNOD NOSIAOVIN

Ieak Jo puq ‘asugjeqy pung

iedak jo Fuuuidag ‘soujeq puny

saoueeq punj ul a8ueys 1o

(s2sn} sanunos Juidueul JaYio w0}
Ino sia)suel) gunesadg

u s13gsuel) Supesd

(SASN} $A2AN0S BNIONVYNEL YHHLO

saunypuadxa (JEpuUnyaaac anusasy

samnypuadxa (2101
sjuzawied Jleyaq-u)

20
Le|ngo jendey

sieu2iew pue salddng

S20[A13S PASBYDINJ
sijauag
saue|es

STANLIANT XA

SANUAAIL [RIC]
L1THg)
pLETEM |
MNUIARL JIBY2G-UCY
2NU2A2] JBI2PA4
3NUDADI RIS
INUIAII [BIO]

SANNIAYY



68

‘podos s 1011pne Juapuadapul puE SIUALLIDIEIS [EISUBUL) 2] O] SAI0U 33§

Col'6br §  SLO'SF $  1Tse $  9p1 § 0s9'nEl 0§ |ILF §  4S9°SE $ s8F 3
979" 0y FLgel - - - - £85°0L 8t
6£5'8 181°1€ 1254 911 0s9'0¢1 gL't 0L0'S -
- - - - LIT'9L - - .
- 65 128°L 911 - |14t - -
g1ty 096°6Z - - PEF'T - 708°C -
9z1'Y $ sl $ - £ - $  666'IS $ - § PLTT s - g
Solsbtr  §  SlOSE $ 15 $ 9t g 0s9%0¢l % 8LV $  659°¢C $ 8r $
- - - - 05502t - - -
SoU6by  § SiOSy $ [zs'e $  opl'l $ Q0101 § S8iL'y $ 659'5¢ § 8 3
Py sjooyag HOUAIANL] Aserann) digsiau)ied juerr) aviAgag  10]asUN0) 1aloag
NBIG ey AUI 1A MNUIG EAllE BN Amnwne) ausnlpy uoneINpy
[eLUdD) [euoiday B IsSNqYy 2 SONBWSYIBA Al 2LL JRUONREIO A [euondoy
WVULISYNG P IANEWINY
NG SJUBNJ |,

SINNODDV A0 ATNAAHIS ONINIHWOD

LO0T ‘0f dunp

AUNNA NOLLVDNAA
¥4 NOLLYONAYA 40 AD1A440 TYNOIDIY ALNNOD NOSIAVIN

{(noya() souejey pung

pUE SINIIqELT [BI0]

P3AI3$3IUf] - IJUR|RE] pun.j

JONVTVE ANNd

saniiqel| g1
AOUIAL PALIDYI(]
SIUAWWIAA0Y 19410 01 Ing]
llodded paniaoy
a|qrAed siunodxoy

SHILIGVIT

HAONVIVEH ONMNA ANV SELLIHAVE]

$198S Y [B10],

SJUDWILIAACT 12410 WO} ang]
3|QBAL302] SJUNODOY

{syE1pI2A0) ysE)

SLASSY



09

‘woday s 1oupne JUapU3dapll pUB SIUSWIIRIS |ZIDUBUL] D] 0] S310U 334

(11oya(y} souefeg pun

pue sanljtqely [e10],

DaAlISAIUN - d2uUR[Rg pUN

HONVIVE JNNA

saliIget] [elo]
INU3IAZI p2LIZ)2(]
SIULIdACT 1530 0) an(]
[1oz4ed parusoy
3qeied s)unoooy

SALLITIYVIT

AINVIVE GNNA ANV SALLITIEVIT

960469 § £ - $  9uL'l $ 0TSy $ (og1'D) § o8y § 0008 $
POY 681 - - - - (0£1°7) 'y -
76970 154 . 9Ll 0TSy - 544 000°8
28706 - - (1 (A2 4 - 44 0008
69F°€1 4 - - - - - -
£88°0t - - v - - - -
85009 - - $ 11t § &Ll $ - $ - $ - $
960't69 $ € - § 9L $ 0S't § (oe1'n § €98 $ 0008 §
£19°¢C1 - - LT0'71 - - 9Z0°¢ -
£81°85S  § 134 - s {rog'er)  § 0 0TSy $ {0£1'D) $  L£89 $ o000'8 %

[£10], apIvaelg funapeyy vaSs IUEISISSY  Juawdacadwi]  JUIWUSSISSY  UOPEINPH

yRwarosdm guimeay, g 1ed |G UUREN ] 100yag » yueIdiy
suipeay g Meg IS 3sayy Bmpedy] )sa Burpray I aPLL SPIRpPURIS NWIG
duipeay [ 2PL 1321 13

L00T ‘o€ duny
SINNOIDY 40 1NATHIS ONINIHIWOD
ANA NOLLYIMIA
IP# NOLLYDNAA 40 AD1440 TYNOIDTH ALNNOD NOSIAVIA

§195SY [BI0]

SIUAUNLIZA0T 1BYI0 Wy AN
2[qQRAISD3I SJUNOIIY

{syeIpIaAOD) yseD

SLASSY



‘podar s Jonpne Juapuadapul pue SITIWNEIS [BISURULY A] O] SHOU a5

9z9'0ry $ PESCE § - : - $ - $ - $ £35°0¢ 5 b S Jeak jo pug (uaac]) ssuejed pung
819'0LE 288°%( - - - - 6€L°¢T 1L pate1sal - 1224 jo Fuuuidag "(natjo]) saugjeq pun
800°0L {8¥0°1) - - - . Fr8'y {gT) sa3uR[eq punj ur s3ueys 1aN
(668} - - - . - - - (sasn} saounos Juisueulj Y10 [RIO],
{6£8°+) - - - - - - - N0 S13Jsuel |
- - - - - - - - Ul SJ2JSUBI]
(S3SM) $IDANOS ONIINVNIA YIRLO
LFSPL (2+0°1) - - - - TRV (£2) sanjipuadxo (13pun) Joao anuasay
ger'egl 8E6°LLE - - 8TCLYT - TE8'v81 [0Z'19 saimtpuadxa g0 |
- - - - - - - - SHUT [RIUSLILDAOE 13410 0] SJUaWAE
THe - - - . - - - 240
609 - - - - - 6¥T°1 - Aeping eyde
8LY0T 179701 - - 66602 - AN - s[euatew pue satjddng
0L£9¢ 9Z6'CI - - 956" 60T - 638°6 A $ADIAIDS PISEUDIN]
2£9°0¢ vRLOY - - 651°¢ - 11Z'6T 08’6 siyauag
9%9°99 LBS'LOC - - F17'€! - geEEvl L6008 SOUE|RG
STINLEANTJdXH
£81°857 068'9L€ - - 8L LY - 9.9°681 8,119 SANUIARL IO,
80T°H1 864 - - ve - 68L 4 1S
- - - - LT L¥T - 696911 - INUAIL |BIDP3,]
LLE'ERT T6T9LE - - - - 009°€l vLI'T9 anuasal ajelg
- $ - $ - S - 3 - § - E) 81L'8S $ - 3 ANUIADL B0
SUNNIAHA
pry $|O0YIS uonuasdld Adeaalr diysaauyaeg JUBIT) INAIIG Aojasuna)) yaloag
NeIg ajeg IUIOIA RITTSHTETRIN ERHETRIN Sunwuso?) juasnipy uoneINpy
[CAETIEYS [euc3ay B asnqy 29 SHIEWAPNEY AL PML |euonEIO A [euondQ
DUBISQNS % IANBUII) Y
ae)g SIUENAL

L0DZ *0€ 3unp papuy Jed 4 ) 104
SADNYTIVH AN NI SIDNYHD ANV 'STHNLIANAIXA ‘'STNNTATH 4O ATNAAHIS DININIFWCD
SINNODDY ANNA NOLLYINAA
I¥# NOLLY)1Ad A0 AD1440 TYNOIDAY ALNNOD NOSIGVYIA




9

‘wodal S 101pae JUSpURdIPUI PUE SIUSWNIRIS [BISURUL] IUI ) SHJOU 305

voF'6sr  § 120°Z § - $ - $§ - 5 - $ {0£1'D) § vy $ - $ 163k 30 pug (1syaq) 2oueey pung
8PLTIP 120°7 - - - - {$ev'0) 768°1 - pateisas - reak Jo BuiunBag (naya(g) duefeg pung
959'97 . . . - - cos 0LS°T - sadue[eq punj ul 3FUBYD 18N
{(6£8°r) - - - - - - - - (sasn} saounos Buloueulf 1241o [e1o]
(6E8't) - - - - - - - - N0 SISURI]

- - - - - - - - - ul s13jsuef
(SASN) $ADMNOS DNIDNVNIL YAHLO

SV LS - - - - - [ 0.L5°T - s2UMIpuadxa (Japun} J9A0 INUAIY
$L8°697°1 [0G'L - 909'L 0tF'66 LE1'6Z 10L°ve CELLE - samyipuadxa [g10]
- - - - - - - - - $)UN [RIUNILIAACT I3UI0 0] SIUIWAR,|
Zir'e - - - - - - - - RSlEe)
9£6'6 - - - £65°C - - - - Aeping tde)
$98'6L £66'1 - £50°C Pr9'L1 [AY:%4 - - - sjeteWw pue satyddng
£9¢°97¢ 2ol - £68°¢ 7eL'Te TEE'S 8T 1011 - SADIALIE PISEYDINY
088'0r1 6Ct - - ETARS £61°¢ £85'9 LSR'T - sijauag
6157600 LBE'F - - SLT'8Y 00LS1 08Y'9T SLL'Et - SaLEfEy
SHANLIANTdX3
0LE'[SE] 1004 - 909°L 0¥ 66 L81'6Z 909 L £0L° 0y - SINUAAL [BIC ]
£5L561 - - 8 LS - - 6t - 152 1N]
L65°0¥S 000'9 - 865°L LRE'66 LE1'6Z 909t - - SNURARL JEI2PI
LOECEL - - - - - - +¥9Z°0F - HNUIAIL 2RI
614765 $ 100%1 5 - s - s - § - $§ - § - s - $ IMUADL JE207T]
SANNIALY
[E10] WOOISSE[) apIMIRIG Awapeay vas Juelsissy  Juawaaoadw] juswssassy  uoneanpy
paudny juamasoady Fuureay, g 1ed [ERIULTRER roogag » juzaBipy
spiepuelg Zurpeay q Mg I5a]  3sa1 3wipedy  1sa1) Suipeay HEHN ] SpAepuEl§
durpeay [ 3L T3PLL I33L NLIg

LOOT '0g dunr p3puy 1ea) Y1 104
SAINVIVE UNMA NI SIONYHD ANY STHNLHINAIXA ‘SINNIAATY 30 ATIATHIS ONINIAINOD
SLNNOGIDY ANNA NOILYINadd
[+# NOLLYDNAT 40 401440 TYNOIDTH ALNNOD NOSIAVIA




£9

‘Lodal s jonrpae JapUadapul pue SIUAUMNBIS [RIDUBUL U1 0) $R0U 33§

£8508 % 8 $ 123k Jo pug “aduejeg puny
6€L'6T 1L Jeak jo Suiuwdag ‘eouejeg pun,j
Aa (€2) saoue|Rg pury ul adueyd JaN

T — . (53sn) s301n0s SuldueUL 1YIC [B10],
- - Mo s1apsuel]
- - ur SI3JSuBl]

{SASN) SANINOS ONIDNVNIL YTHLO

rrst 3 12284 - 3 (£7) ) (€0 - 3 S2INIPLUAdX2 (19pUN) 13A0 ANUIAY
(£92'89) TERPRI 6957911 (LT) 1019 vL119 sampuadxa [e10]
- - - - - - suun EwuIA0F 13410 01 sjuswie]
SP8T - SP8'T - - - 1PRPO
(6¥T° 1) 6471 - - - - £epino [enden
(sz1°1) $TI'l - - - - sjeumew pue sanddng
(688°6) 688°6 - - pSZ'l b6z $321A198 paseyaIng
(16'0T) 112°6T 00€'8 (07) 0586 086 sy
{pee'Le) RSCEPI YIrSol (L) L60°0S 060°0S SILIR[ES
SHANLIANAIXH
LOT'EL 9.9°681 695911 ¥ 8L1'19 FL1'19 SANUDA [810
684 68L - ¥ 4 - 1S2121U]
- 695911 695°911 - - - INUDADI [RIDPA,]
009°¢! 009°¢1 - - vL1°19 vLI 1O SNUIAII BN
81L°8S $ giL'gs % - $ - $ - $ - iy ONUNADI [B207]
SHNNIAYA
(2ANEGIN) [E0]DY 123png {2an1ESaN ) jEnRY 138png
aamsod aaniseg
JDURLIBA DuLB A
10jasuno)) Juaunsnipy [euoyeses paloag voneanpyy [euondQ / IANERIN|Y SIUENI ],

L0O0T ‘€ AUnf PIpUu 1824 A1) 2G|
SLN1022V ANNJ NOLLYDNAI
ATNATHIS NOSTHYJINOD AVLIDANY
1## NOLLYOAA 40 121440 T¥YNOIDTA ALNNOD NOSIUVYIA




|4

"vodas s 1olipne wapuadapul Puk SIUSWIETS [BIDUBLI 24 01 $10U 324

- s§ - $ - g
- § - - - ) : $ - - B
091°11 [86'99 POE' ] $E6°791 OLT L LEE081 L19'%ST
c8% 1924 PS8 00011 9Ty 8E€LCI 000'81
061" €1 19L'ES PR9€L SEL6'0F1 882°09 S61°961 £8¥°912
{cirn 0907 ss 005°1 6§56l 660°1 b$9°T
{001°2) 668'€ 10€°L 001°6 $91'g cie's 08t°L1
09111} 186'99 Y6£ v8 $€CT91 (0LTvL) LPE081 L19'46T
- - - - [ S -
(oor1n 18699 P6E'v8 SECT91 (PZEpL) £62°081 L19PST
- $ - ) - 5 - ) - $ - $ - $
{(aanedan) eny |enyY jsepng {aanedaN) [en)ay Papng
aamnsog LOOT ‘OEAuUnp  9QQ7 ‘0f dunp aAyisod
NUELIEA -900T ‘1 AInf - S007 I AInp DUBLIEA

(9007) d1YSI3ULIEg 3302158 %3 SINEWIYIE]

(L007) digs1amae 300305 % SAEUWRYIEN

L00Z *0€ dung papuy 1837 1)) 104
SINNODDVY ANNJ NOILYDNAd
TTNAIHODS NOSIHVLIWOD AdY.LADANd
Ir# NOILLVYDNAA A0 4430 TYNOTITY ALNNOD NOSIAVIN

IE24A JO puy ‘2dueley puny
IeaA Jo Juiuumdeg ‘aousieg punyg
sasuejeq punj ul 3BURLD 104

(sasn} snainos FuioueUl I9YI0 [B10
N0 SIAJSURL ]
u1 sIgjsues §
{SHSN) SADUNOS DNIONVNIA ATHIO

satrgipuadxa (19pun) 1240 anuAYY

salnjipuadxa [ej0 ]
S1IUT [BIUAWIWAA0T JaU10 0F SudwAe
B
Aeqing (ende)
s[eLIaew pue sajddng
S901AIDS paseyaing
siyauag
SILIB|EY
SHUNLIANAIXH

SANUSAIL [RIC
18R]
ANUIADL [BIIPD
NUIAI RIS
2RUIADI {807

SANNAIATY



£9

-uodal s101pne [UAPUXIDPUT PUB SIUSWAIMS [RIDUBUL Y] 01 S0 39§

Try 3 FEREl  $ 1294 jo pug ‘asuerey puny
76%°1 IR P IBaA Jo JuuwiBag ‘aoueeg] punyg
0LS'T (8v0°1) saouk[eq pury ul 3Fueyd 1N
- - (sosn) saoinos Fuidurug JOYIO [BI0],
- - mno m‘_u,*m_._m._r_l
- - Ul Siajsuel |
($45N) $A2UN0S DNIDNVNII dIHLO
0LST §  0L5C - S (8v0° 1) §  (8r'D - 3 saimpuadxa (JApUN) 1940 INUIAIY

LERLS CELELE 0L5°C6 (£85°1) 8€6'LLE [CE'9LE saangipuadxa jejo g

- - - - - - m:cn E.EOEED.;ON hoﬁ_uo 0] mEuEhﬁ&

- - - - - - itliile]

- - - - - - Aepng [ende))

- - - {1v9) 1¥9°01 000°01 s{pHEI pue saiddng
(to1'n 1011 - 907 926°'T1 ZE1e! S3[AIAS PISEYIIN
(2s8'0) L58'T - RN PSLOp 576° 1S s)yauag

$6L°19 SLLEE 04L5°S6 (£67°9) LBS'LOE ¥67'10¢€ saue|es

SHYMNLIAND X
(L97°SS) £0¢ 0 0L5'C6 6£5 068°9/¢ [6£'9LE SANUIAAL [BI0,

6¢ 68 - 865 865 - 15U

- - - - - - ANUIAIL [BI1IPI ]
(90£°55) ¥97'0b 0L5°S6 {65) 76T°9LE 16€°6.¢ aNUIARL RIS

- w - m - m - m - m - m INUZAIL RG]

SANNIATY
(aAnEdIN) NIy j38png (2AETBIN) jEn)dY Papng
Qﬁzmoh aaniso g
mu:&_._m} MBLIE A

JUANSSISSY 2 SPIEPUELS NEIS

S|00YIS JES [BUGIZIY

L00T ‘0€ duUng popug Au3 4 duh 10,
SINNODDV AN NOLLVINaA
FIATHIS NOSTIVIINOD ANVLIADANY
[b# NOLLVDNAT 40 AD1440 TYNOIDTY ALNNOD NOSIAVIA



99

‘Wodas s 1o1pne WSpusdapul pUE SIUSWSIEIS |BLIURUL 3L) 0] 330U 93§

- 0€1¢ 3
- (Ser)
- S0¢

- E - 3 <0t g <0t - g

£v8°0T LS1°62 000°0¢ 65¢°LT 10£°v¢ 09.°19

Sob'C L6y LTS - - -

8OF'S1 rA3 Y 008°0C (8tz' ) RET'I -

0% €61t €LT'E (£85'9) £86'9 -

0081 00L°GT 00S° L1 087°5¢ 03%'92 09.°19
(£r8oT) L5176 0000 #s1°22) 909 € 09L°19
(£p8'07) LST6T 000'0¢ &eren) 909't ¢ 09L°19

- § - - $ - § - g - $

{(3AnEdIN) Jen)dy 13dpnyg {aanedan) [En)yy 1epng
aaLsog 3ANIS04
AJUEUIEA SIUBLIB A

IJUBISISSY [BIIUYDD [ ISI1 SUIPRY- | 2P

JuswRAosdw] 100YIg [ 2PLL

L00T ‘0€ dUnp pIpuY IBIA 3Y) 10y
SINNODDY UNNA NOLLYDNAA
ATNAAHIS NOSTHVdIWOD AMY.LIDdNd
¥4 NOLLYONAY A0 D440 TYNOIDTY ALNNOID NOSIAaY

Ieak Jo puy] ‘asue|eg pun g
Jead jo Funundag ‘aourleg pun,|
s20UR[Eq punj ur 3JuUBYD 12N

{sasn) sooinos Julaueuly Jayio [wlo]
MO SIJSUBL],
Ul SI3]SUB1],
(SISN) STANOS ONIINVYNIA UFHLO

sa1npuadxd (13pUN) 19A0 INUIATY

sarntpuadxe mo
S1IUN [BIUSLWILIAAOS I3U10 0] SjuauIde ]
#PYO
Lzno ende)
sjeiIalew pue sorjddng
$IJ1ALIS POSEYMUNY
s31jauag
SILIR[ES
STHOLIANTIXH

SONU3AJL [BIO ],
1STAM]
DTUSAAL |RISP3J
INUIAIL NRIG
DTWAARI [BIO]

SANNIAHY



L9

‘wodas sJ0Upne Wapuadapul pUR SJUBWRIEIS [BIDUEUL] YT O SNOU 23§

- % - % -
- - - - S - - -
£r9°TI 909°L AN 4 £LS°6F 016'6¢ i) 05£'6¢£1
- - - - L £65°T 009'7
(oF) £60'C 89¢°01 SLETI 90F°7 br9Ll 050°02
9t9'a £65°¢ 9LT’9 ST 12 611°7¢€ T5L°TT 1L1°6¢
€47 - 0¢s CLL 98¢°( 9/1°8 1956
0I8'C - 061°71 000°S 1 Z69°¢ SLT'RY L96TS
(ep9'21) 009"t ¥ZE6Z £L5°6Y (016'68) Ot¥'66 0SE6¢1
8 8 - - £5 £ -
(1s9'z1) 865°L $Z8'67 £L6'6F (£96°6€) L35°66 0Sc6El
- s - $ - $ - $ - s - -
(2ANEAIN) MY [EnY ya8png (AnESIN) BNy jeapnyg
2401504 L00Z ‘0 Aung  9pQZ ‘0 unfp 3asoq
dUBLIBA -900T 'L AINT - 00T °1 A UBLIEA

(9007) Awapeay Suiuex) g 1E] Jsi1] Juipeay - [ APLL

L0OZ *0€ dunp papuy 1eax ay)y 1oy
SINNOIIV ONNJ NOLLVYINdA

ATNATHIS NOSIHYJIWOD A¥VLADANE

VAS g Med I1SI0] Suipeay] - [ 9L

[F# NOLLVYDNAA 40 A21440 TYNOIDAH AILNNOD NOSIAVIA

IBak |0 puy “souejeq pun
Ie0A jo Suuuidagy ‘aouefeg pung
saaueeq punj v 2HuBYD 19N

($osn) $301N0% FUIdUBLY 1DYO [BIO]

INO SIAJSUBL],
ul slajsuel]

(SISN) STOUNOS ONIONVNIL YTHLO
sainyIpuadxa (1apun} 1340 INUIATY

saumipuadxa [eo |
sjun [BluswuiaA0d 1ayjo o] sjuswie]

DYI0
Aening [ende)

s|euajew pue sajddng
SIIAIDS paseqaInd

sujauay
saueey

SHUNLIANTIXA

SSNUSADI [BI0],
1sa19

ANUIADI [BIPI.]
ANUIASI IS
STUBADS [EDOT]

SANNAIATY



89

170°C g
120°C
- 3 - - 3
(100°t) 100°2 000'y
(g6 1) £66°1 00s
80¢°¢C z61 005°¢
{62t) Y4 -
(L8E'p) L€'y -
100°¢ 100°L 000y
0009 000°9 -
(000'F) - 000y
1001 $ 1001 § - g
(panedaN) [enpRy wipng
NSO
DUELIEA

WooSSE[) pausdly spiepuels

LODZ “0€ 3ung papuy 1eax ay) 104
SINNOIDY ANNA NOLLVYONAd3

“podal 8 JOUPNE JUIPUSdIPU] PUR SIUILUIIEIS [RIDURUL AU O1 $D10U 35§

1824 jO puq ‘aduereg pun,]
Izak Jo Suuuidag ‘aouripyg puny
SOOUE[BY puny ui a5ueyd 19N

{sasn} s323n0s JuldUBUI] 1IN0 [BIO],
N0 s19jsuel ]
U1 SI3SURI]

{SHSM) $TDANOS ONIDINYNIL YTHLO

samnjpuadxo (1opun) JoA0 snuaadYy

saanypuadxa jelo
SHUN [BIUSUILLIIACST JD{10 01 SUstIAR ]
BWRO
AepnQ fende)
s|ermew pue sajjddng
$201A12S paseyain ]
si1jauag
salte|eg
STUNLIANAIXH

SINLAA] [BIO]
ekl |
INUIAZL [BIIP Y
ANUIATI DYRIG
STUBASL {207]

SHNANIATY

ATAAAHIS NOSRIYVdIWOD AdV.LADANd

IP# NOLLYODNAT AQ D440 TYNOIDTY ALNNOD NOSIAVIN



MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
EDUCATIONAL THERAPY CENTER FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS
June 30, 2007

Lunch
Unemployment Account Day
Reserve Program Program Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments S 158,259 $ 22,954 $ 69,953 $ 251,168
Accounts receivable - - 137,594 137,594
Due from other governments - 103 - 103
TOTAL ASSETS 5 158,259 $ 23,057 $ 207,549 $  388.865
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITEES
Accounts payable $ - b - $ 19,542 $ 19,542
Due to other governments - - - -
Accrued payroll - . 86,754 86,754
Deferred revenue - - - -
Total liabilities - - 106,296 106,296
FUND BALANCE
Fund balance - unreserved 158,259 23,057 101,253 282,569
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $ 158,259 $ 23057 $ 207,549 § 38B.865

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditor's report.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41

EDUCATIONAL THERAPY CENTER FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Lunch
Unemployment Account Day
Reserve Program Program Total
REVENUES
Local revenue $ - $ 6,537 § 1,072477 $ 1,079,014
State revenue - 1,572 - 1,572
Federal revenue - 28,826 - 28,826
[nterest 7,079 548 5,526 13,153
Total revenues 7,679 37,483 1,078,003 1,122,565
EXPENDITURES
Salaries - - 1,006,209 1,006,209
Benefits - - 202,185 202,185
Purchased services - 28,879 27,973 56,852
Supplies and materials - - 43,364 43,364
Capital outlay - - - -
Other - - - -
Payments to other governments - - - -
Total expenditures - 28,879 1,279,731 1,308,610
Revenue over (under) expenditures 7,079 8,604 (201,728) {186,045)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balances 7,079 8,604 (201,728) (186,045)
Fund Balance, Beginning of year 151,180 14,453 302,981 468,614
Fund Balance, End of year $ 158,259 $ 23,057 £ 101,253 $ 282,569

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditor’s report.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2007
Bus
Driver Supervisory Admini-
ASSETS GED Training Expense strative
Cash and investments $ 17,185 $ 5,637 $ - b 55,215
Accounts receivable 350 - - 13,965
Due from other governments - - - )
TOTAL ASSETS 3 17,535 $ 5,637 3 - M) 69,180
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 608 $ - 3 - 3 3,939
Due to other governments - - - -
Accrued payroll - - - -
Deferred revenue - - - -
Total liabilities 608 - - 3,939
FUND BALANCE
Fund balance (deficit) - unreserved 16,927 5,637 - 65,241
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE 3 17,535 $ 5,637 $ - $ 69,180

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditor's report.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2007
Youth and
Camp
ASSETS Success TOTALS
Cash and investments $ - 3 78,037
Accounts receivable - 14,315
Due from other governments - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ - _$ 92,352
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5 - 3 4,547
Due to other governmenis - -
Accrued payroll - -
Deferred revenue - .
Total liabilities - 4,547
FUND BALANCE
Fund balance (deficit) - unreserved - 87,805
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE ¥ - 5 92,352

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditor's report.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Bus
Driver Supervisory Admini-
GED Training Expense strative
REVENUES
Local revenue $ 21,438 $ 4,232 $ - $ 70,759
State revenue - 1,440 1,000 -
Federal revenue - - - -
Interest 594 234 14 2.855
Total revenues 22,032 5,906 1,014 73,614
EXPENDITURES
Salaries - - - -
Benefits 1,389 255 - -
Purchased services 13,790 6,430 1,014 86,878
Supplies and materials 5,358 234 - 5,029
Capital outlay - - - -
Other - - - 2,930
Payments to other governmental units - - - -
Total expenditures 20,537 6,919 1,014 94,837
Revenue over (under) expenditures 1,495 {1,013) - (21,223)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LJSES)
Transfers in - - - 1,088
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - 1,088
Net change in fund balances 1,495 (1,013) - (20,135)
Fund Balance, Beginning of year - restated 15,432 6,650 - 85,376
Fund Balance, End of year 3 16,927 3 5,637 $ - 3 65,241

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditor's report,
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Youth and
Camp
Success TOTAL
REVENUES
Local revenue 3 - 8 96,429
State revenue - 2,440
Federal revenue - -
Interest 129 3,826
Total revenues 129 102,695
EXPENDITURES
Salaries - -
Benefits - 1,644
Purchased services - 108,112
Supplies and materials - 10,621
Capital outlay - -
Other - 2,930
Payments to other governmental units . -
Total expenditures - 123,307
Revenue over (under) expenditures 129 (20,612)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 1,088
Transfers out (1,088) (1,088)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,088) -
Net change in fund balances {959) (20,612)
Fund Balance, Beginning of year - restated 959 108,417
Fund Balance, End of year $ - 3 87.805

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditor's report.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Additions Deductions 2007
TRS & THIS Fund
ASSETS
Cash {overdraft) S (6,012) §% 189.070 h) 189,226 § (6,168)
Accounts receivable 1,612 4,375 1,612 4,375
Total assets $ (4400 % 193,445 $ 190,838 $ {1,793)
LIABILITIES
Due 1o other governments $ (4,400) § 193445 % 190,838 % (1,793)

See notes to the financial statements and independent auditot’s report.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor, Expenditures
Program Title & CFDA Project 7/1/06-
Major Program Designation Nutmher Number 6/30/2007
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed through Hlinois State Board of Education (ISBE):
Mathematics and Science Partnership (M) 07-4936-01 180,347
06-4936-01 66,981
84.366 247,328
Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds (M) 07-4337-00 99,440
Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds (M) 07-4337-04 29,157
Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds (M) 06-4337-02 7,606
84.357 136,203
Passed rhrough St Clair County Regional Office of Education #50:
Title I School Improvement and Accountability 07-4331-SS 34,606
Passed through Bond/Fayette/Effingham Counties Regional Office of Education #3:
Title 1 Standards Aligned Classroom Initiative 07-4331-00 6,000
84.010A 40,606
Passed through Hlinois Department of Human Services (IDHS):
Vocational Adjustment Counselor 84.126 407001436 116,569
Total U.S. Department of Education § 540,706
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through ISBE:
Child Nutrition Commodity / Salvage 10.550 07-4250-00  § 14
School Breakfast Program 07-4220-00 7,935
06-4220-00 564
10.553 8,499
National School Lunch Program 07-4210-00 18,929
06-4210-00 1,384
10.555 20,313
Total 1.S. Department of Agriculture $ 28.826
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 569532

(M) Program was audited as a major program

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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MADISON COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION #41
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Madison
County Regional Office of Education #41 and is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, dudits of

States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented on this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2: SUBRECIPIENTS

There were no federal awards provided to subrecipients.

NOTE 3: DESCRIPTION OF MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS

Mathematics and Science Partnership

The purpose of this grant was to target math and science teachers with content for professional development.
Title [ — Reading First Part B SEA Funds

This fund is used to account for grant monies received for, and payment of, professional development in the area of
reading for teachers in the Madison and Venice school districts.

NOTE 4 - NON-CASH ASSISTANCE

Madison County Regional Office of Education #41 did not receive any federal non-cash assistance.

NOTE 5 - LOANS AND INSURANCE

There were no federal awards received or disbursed by the Madison County Regional Office of Education for the
purpose of loans or insurance.
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